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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT

To the Members of Kisan Phosphates Private Limited,
Report on the Audit of Ind-AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the Ind-AS financial statements of Kisan Phosphates Private Limited (‘the
Company'), which comprise the balance sheet as at March 31, 2022, and the statement of
Profit and Loss, statement of changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year
then ended and notes to the Ind AS financial statements, including a surnmary of the
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information (hereinafter referred to
as ‘the Ind AS financial statements’).

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true
and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of
the state of affairs of the Company as at March 21, 2022, and profit for the year ended on
that date, changes in equity and statement of cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(1C) of the Companies Act, 2013. Our responsibilities under those
Standards are further described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in
accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Charlered Accountants of
India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements under the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and the Rules
thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these
requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Emphasis of Matter

We draw attention the financial statements which states that the management has made
an assessment of the impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s operations, financial
performance and position as at and for the end of year ended March 31, 2022 and has
concluded that there is .o material impact which is required to be recognized in the
financial statements. Accordingly, no adjustments have been made to the financial
statements. Our opinion is not modified In respect of this matter.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significanice in our audit of the Ind AS financial statements for the financial year ended
March 31, 2022. These rmatters were addressed in the context of our audit of the Ind AS
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide
a separate opinion on these matters. We have determined the matters described below to
be the key audit matters to be communicated in our report.
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Key audit matters

Revenue from contracts with customers
_(described in Note 2 (K) of the standalone Ind AS financial statements)

'How our audit addressed the key audit
matter

Revenue  from contracts with | We assessed the Company’s process to
customers is recognized when control | identify the impact of adoption of new
of the goods is transferred to the | revenue accounting standard.

customer at an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the
Company expects to be entitled in
exchange for those goods.

The Company is engaged in | We assessed the design and tested the
manufacturing of Chemicals and | operating effectiveness of internal controls
fertilizers through its plant. It has | related to revenue recognition, discounts
developed procedures to record the | and rebates.

revenue on the basis of the movement
of the goods and revenue accrues as
per Indian accounting standard 115.

Due to different terms with different. | We performed sample tests of individual
customers and transaction price, there | sales transaction and traced to related
is a risk that the revenue or discounts | doccuments, considering the terms of
or rebates; and export incentives | dispatch.

thereon might not be recorded
carrectly

Revenue is a key parameter to | We tested cut-off procedures with respect to
ascertain the Company’s performance. | year-end sales transactions made.

The Company focuses on revenue as a
key performance measure, which | We also performed monthly analytical
could create an incentive for revenue | procedures of revenue by streams to identify
to be recognized before the risk and | any unusual trends.

rewards have been transferred.

Information Other than the Financial Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The Company’s managzment and Board of Directors are responsible for the other
information. The other informaticn comprises the information included in the Board's
Report including Annexures to Board's Report but does not include the financial statements
and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statements does not cover the other information and we do
not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the financial statements, our responsibility is to read the
other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the fmancnai statements, or our knowledge obtalned in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the
date of this auditors report, we conclude that there Is a material mi statement of this

regard.
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Responsibilities of Management for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company's Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 124(5)
of the Companies Act, 2013 ('the Act') with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS
financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position, financial
performance, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with the
accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the accounting standards
specified under section 133 of the Act.

This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in
accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company
and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; selection and application
of appropriate implementation and maintenance of accounting policies; making judgments
and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for
ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the Ind-AS financial statements that give a true and fair
view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
management either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no
realistic alternative but to do so.

Those Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial
reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilliti'gs for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could
reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of
these Ind AS financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SA's, we exercise profebsional judgment and
maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit, We also:

* Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud Is higher than for one resultlng from error, as

fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control,

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i)
of the Companies Act, 2013, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the company has adequate internal financial controls system in place ang
the operating effectiveness of such controls.
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»  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

* Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on
the Company's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Ind AS financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.

e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the Financial Results of the
Company to express an opinion on the Financial Results.

Materialit;’ is the magnitude of misstatements in the Financial Results that, individually
or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably
knowledgeable user of the Financial Results may be influenced. We consider quantitative
materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and in
evaluating the results of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified
misstatements in the Financial Results.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters,
the planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order, 2020 (“the Ord_er”), issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of sub-section (11) of section 143 of the

Companies Act, 2013, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the matters
specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.

2. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best
of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;
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c) The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss, and the Cash Flow Statement
dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the books of account;

d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Ind AS financial statements comply with the
Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with Rule 7 of the
Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014;

e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2022 taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2022 from being appointed as a director in terms of

Section 164 (2) of the Act;

f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting
of the Company with reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the
operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in "Annexure

BH;
g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance

with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, in our opinion and
to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us:

i.The Company does not have any pending litigations which would impact its financial
position.

ii. The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts
for which there were any material foreseeable losses as at March 31, 2022.

There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor
Education and Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended March 31,

2022.

(A) The management has represented that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested (either from borrowed funds
or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the Company to or in
any other persons or entities, including foreign entities ("Intermediaries"), with the
understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary
shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities
identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the

Ultimate Beneficiaries;

(B) The management has represented, that, to the best of its knowledge and belief,
no funds have been received by the Company from any persons or entities,
including foreign entities ("Funding Parties"), with the understanding, whether
recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, directly or indirectly, lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever ("Ultimate
Beneficiaries") by or on behalf of the Funding Party or provide any guarantee,
security or the like from or on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

ocedures as considered reasonable and appropriate in
ur notice that has caused us to believe

(A) and (B) above contain any material

(C) Based on such audit pr
the circumstances, nothing has come to o
that the representations under sub-clause

misstatement.
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v.No dividend has been declared or paid during the year by the company.

For K C P L And Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Number: 119223W / W100021

Rakesh Agarwal

Partner
Membership Number: 170685

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24" May, 2022
Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document s

22170685AMKSNG9280.



Annexure ‘A’ to Auditors Report

Referred to in paragraph 1 under the heading “Report on Other Legal and Regulatory
Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of Kisan Phosphates Private
Limited (“the Company”) on the financial statements for the year ended 31t March 2022,

we report that:

()

(if)

(iii)

(iv)

In respect of the Company’s Property, Plant and Equipment and Intangible Assets:

(a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars including
quantitative details and situation of property, plant & equipment.

(b) The Company has a phased programme of physical verification of property,
plant & equipment which, in our opinion, is reasonable having regard to the size of
the Company and the nature of its assets. The frequency of physical verification is
reasonable and no material discrepancies were noticed on such verification.

(c) As per information and explanation provided to us and on the basis of our
examination of records produced us for verification by the Company, the title
deeds of immovable properties disclosed in the financial statements included under
Property, Plant and Equipment are held in the name of the Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company
has not revalued its property, plant and Equipment and its intangible assets.

(e) According to the information and explanations given to us, no proceeding has
been initiated or pending against the Company for holding benami property under
the Benami Transactions (Prohibition) Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder.

(a) As explained to us, physical verification of inventory has been conducted at
reasonable intervals by the management and in our opinion the coverage and
procedure of such verification by the management is appropriate, and no
discrepancies of 10% or more in the aggregate for each class of inventory.

(b) The Company has sanctioned working capital limits in excess of Rs. 5 crores in
aggregate from Banks/financial institutions on the basis of security of current
assets. Quarterly returns / statements filed with such Banks/ financial institutions
are in agreement with the books of account of the Company.

As informed and explanation provided to us, the Company has not granted any
loans, secured or unsecured, to the companies, firms, limited liabilities partnerships
or other parties covered in the register maintained under section 189 of the
Companies Act, 2013 hence clause 3 (iii) (a), (iii) (b), (iii) (c),(iii) (d),(iii)(e), (iii)(f)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our
examination of the records, the Company has not given any loans, or provided any
guarantee or security as specified under Section 185 and SefhigN186 of the
Companies Act, 2013.




(V)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

The Company has not accepted any deposits or amounts which are deemed to be

deposits from the public. Hence, reporting under clause 3 (v) of the Order is not
applicable.

In our opinion, as per the explanation and information provided to us, requirement
regarding maintenance of cost records under sub section (1) of section 148 of the
Companies Act, 2013 does not apply to the company.

a) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of records of the Company, amounts deducted/ accrued in
the books of accounts in respect of undisputed statutory dues including
provident fund, employees state insurance, income-tax, sales tax, service tax,
duty of custom, duty of excise, value added tax, cess and any other statutory
dues have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the
appropriate authorities.

According to the information and explanation given to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of provident fund, employees state insurance,
income-tax, sales tax, service tax, duty of custom, duty of excise, value
added tax, cess and any other statutory dues were in arrear as at 315t March,
2022 for a period of more than six months from the date they become
payable except for the following:

Particulars F. Y to which it relates Amount (Rs.)
Labour welfare 2019-20 Rs. 4,109

b) According to the information and explanation given to us and on the basis of
our examination of books of accounts, there are no dues of income tax, sales
tax, service tax, duty of custom and duty of excise and value added tax as at
the end of financial year, which have not been deposited on account of any
dispute.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company does not
have any transactions not recorded in the books of account have been surrendered
or disclosed as income during the year in the tax assessments under the Income
Tax Act, 1961 (43 of 1961).

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not
defaulted in repayment of loans or borrowing to financial institutions, bank,
government and dues to debentures holders, wherever availed.

a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis
of our audit procedures, we report that the company has not been declared
wilful defaulter by any bank or financial institution or government or any
government authority.

)\ The Company has taken not taken term loan during the current year and
accordingly reporting under clause 3 (ix) (c) of the Order is not applicable to
the company.



(%)

(xi)

(xii)

(xiii)

c)

d)

a)

b)

b)

)

According to the information and explanations given to us, and the
procedures performed by us, and on an overall examination of the financial
statements of the company, we report that no funds raised on short-term
basis have been used for long-term purposes by the company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture,
hence reporting under the clause 3 (ix) (e) of the order is not applicable to
the Company.

The Company does not have any subsidiary, associate or joint venture,
hence reporting under the clause 3 (ix) (f) of the order is not applicable to
the Company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to
us, the Company did not raise any money by way of initial public offer or
further public offer during the year and money raised by way of Term loan
were applied for the purposes for which those are raised.

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has not made any
preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully, partly or
optionally convertible debentures during the vyear. Accordingly, the
provisions stated in paragraph 3 (x)(b) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

Based on examination of the books and records of the Company and
according to the information and explanations given to us, considering the
principles of materiality outlined in Standards on Auditing, we report that no
fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or reported
during the course of the audit.

No report under sub-section (12) of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
has been filed by the auditors in Form ADT-4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central Government.

According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has
not received any whistle blower complaint during the year.

The company is not a Nidhi Company, hence clause 3 (xii) of the Order is not
applicable,

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, all
the transactions with related parties are in compliance with section 177 and 188 of
the Companies Act, 2013 wherever applicable and the details has been disclosed in
the financial statements etc., as required by the applicable accounting standards.




(xv)

(xvi)

(xvii)

(xviii)

(xix)

>Dlve any guarantee nor any assurance that all liabilities falling du

According to the records of the Company examined by us and the information and
explanation given to us, the company does not meet the criteria for the
applicability of internal audit. Accordingly, the provisions of Clause 3 (xiv) (a) and
(b) of said Order are not applicable to the company.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the
Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons
connected with him, thus provision under section 192 of the Companies Act, 2013
are not applicable at Company, hence clause 3 (xv) of the Order is not applicable.

(a) In our opinion, the Company is not required to be registered under section 45
IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934 and accordingly, the provisions stated in
paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(a) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(b) In our opinion, the Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or
Housing Finance activities without any valid Certificate of Registration from
Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph clause 3 (xvi)(b) of
the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(c) The Company is not a Core investment Company (CIC) as defined in the
regulations made by Reserve Bank of India. Hence, the reporting under paragraph
clause 3 (xvi)(c) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(d) The Company does not have any CIC as part of its group. Hence the provisions
stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvi) (d) of the order are not applicable to the

company.

Based on the overall review of financial statements, the Company has not incurred
cash losses in the current financial year and in the immediately preceding financial
year. Hence, the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xvii) of the Order are not

applicable to the Company.

There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year. Hence,
the provisions stated in paragraph clause 3 (xviii) of the Order are not applicable

to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of the
financial ratios, ageing and expected dates of realization of financial assets and
payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the financial
statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and
based on our examination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has
come to our attention, which causes us to believe that any material uncertainty
exists as on the date of the audit report that company is not capable of meeting its
liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due wiifhin a
period of one year from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not
an assurance as to the future viability of the company. We further state thaIE our
reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we neutt:ner

e within a period
pf\one year from the balance sheet date, will get discharged by the company as

JH when they fall due.




(xx)

(xxi)

The provisions of sub-section (5) of Section 135 of the Companies Act 2013 are
not applicable to the company and hence, reporting under clause 3 (xx) (a) of the
Order is not applicable.

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us the
clause in regard to the Companies (Auditor's Report) Order (CARO) reports of the
companies included in consolidated financial statements is not applicable to the
company, hence clause 3 (xxi) of the order is not applicable.

For K C P L And Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 119223W/W100021

RaKesh Agarwal
Partner
M. No.: 170685

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24t May, 2022

Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document is
22170685AMKSNG9280.
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Annexure ‘B’ to Auditors Report

Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under the heading “Report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements” of our report of even date to the members of Kisan

Phosphates Private Limited.

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of Kisan
Phosphates Private Limited (the Company”) as of March 31, 2022, in conjunction with
our audit of the financial statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’'s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on “the internal control over financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by the
Institute of Chartered Accountants of India”. These responsibilities include the design,
implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating
effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence
to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds
and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely
preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls over
financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting (the
“"Guidance Note”) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an
audit of internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls
and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and
the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform
the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls
over financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated

effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and
operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material
misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the Company’s Internal financial controls system over

financial reporting.




Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial  reporting and  the
preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles. A company's Internal financial control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of
records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that
transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorisations of
management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of
the company's assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
Misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial
controls with reference to financial statements and as such internal financial controls were
operating effectively as at March 31, 2022 based on the internal financial controls with
reference to financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants
of India (the “Guidance Note”).

For KC P L And Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Regn. No.: 119223W/W100021

Rak&sh Agarwal
Partner
M. No.: 170685

Place: Mumbai
Date: 24" May, 2022

Unique - Document Identification Number (UDIN) for this document s
22170685AMKSNG9280.
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KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

BALANCE SHEET AS AT MARCH 31, 2022

(INR in Lakhs)

Particulars Noto As at As at
No. March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1 ASSETS
1. Non Current Assets
(a) Property, Plant and Equipment 3 2,730.67 2,456.63
(b) Capital Work-In-Progress 3 272.00 475.12
(c) Financial Assets
(i) Investmenls 4 2 644.09
(ii) Others 5 20.81 20.81
(d) Other Non Current Assets 6 0.18 28.80
3,023.66 3,625.45
2. Current Assets
(a) Inventories 7 2,082.87 1,465.50
(b) Financial Assets
(i) Trade Receivables 8 534.74 975.21
(i) Cash and Cash Equivalents 9 218.84 251.86
(i) Investments 10 2,742.01 -
(iv) Loans & Advances 11 0.69 0.90
(c) Other Current Assets 12 895.71 560.37
6,474.87 3,253.84
Total Assets 9,498.53 6,879.29
Il EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
(a) Equity Share Capital 13 271.00 271.00
(b) Other Equity 14 3,964.56 2,992.01
4,235.56 3,263.01
LIABILITIES
1. Non Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 15 13.20 1.76
(b) Provisions 16 8.78 5.50
(c) Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net) 17 90.63 87.93
(d) Other Non-Current Liabilities 18 34.21 28.96
146.82 124.14
2. Current Liabilities
(a) Financial Liabilities
(i) Borrowings 19 3,084.77 1,563.54
(i) Trade Payable 20
(a) total Outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises 0.85 B.86
(b) total Outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises 875.22 988.19
and small enterprises
(iii) Other Financial Liabilities 21 10.40 152.55
(b) Other Current Liabilities 22 1,062.90 778.97
(c) Provisions 23 1.36 0.03
(d) Current Tax Liabilities (Net) 24 80.65 -
5,116.15 3,492.14
Total Equity and Liabilities 9,498.53 6,879.29
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
1-45

The notes referred 10 above are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For K C P L And Associates LLP

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registration Number: 119223W / W100021

Rak

Agarwal

Partner

Membership Number: 170685

Place - Mumbai
Date - May 24, 2022

UBIM § 22170 68X AMK SNGY230

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

Gautam Makharia
Director
DIN : 01354843

Place - Mumbai
Date - May 24, 2022

Sanjeev Srivastava
Direclor
DIN : 09523460
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KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(INR in Lakhs)
N For the Year ended For the Year ended
Particulars NotoNo. yrarch 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
| Income
Revenue from Operations 25 12,519.88 7,009.16
Other Income 26 99.18 7.78
Total Income 12,619.06 7,016.94
_——— e
Il Expenses
Cost of Material Consumed 27 8,342.38 4,022.31
Changes in Inventories of Finished Goods and Work-in-Progress 28 82.46 285.22
Employee Benefit Expenses 29 529.25 452.24
Depreciation and Amortization Expenses 30 271.06 246.12
Finance Costs 31 17.30 30.10
Other Expenses 32 2,077.51 1,456.37
Total Expenses 11,319.96 6,492.37
Il Profit before tax (I- I) 1,299.10 524,57
IV Less: Tax Expense:
Current Tax 321.69 50.52
Deferred Tax 3.30 86.10
Total Tax Expense 324.99 146.62
V' Profit for the Year (llI-IV) 974.12 377.94
VI Other Comprehensive Income
Items that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefit obligations (2.16) 0.79
Tax Effect on above 0.60 (0.22)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year, net of tax (1.56) 0.57
VIl Total Comprehensive Income for the year (V+Vl) (Comprising Profit and 972.56 378.51
Other Comprehensive Income for the year) : :
VIl Earnings Per Equity Share (Face Value INR 10 Per Share): 33
Basic (INR) 35.95 13.95
Diluted (INR) 2219 8.61
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
The noles referred to above are an integral part of the financial statements 1-45
As per our report of even date aftached
For K C P L And Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Direcl
Chartered Accountants
 Firm Registration Number: 119223W / W1 00021
Rakesh Agarwal Gautam Makharia Sanjeev Srivastava

Pariner
Membership Number: 170685

Place - Mumbai
Date - May 24, 2022

ubid ¢ 2217068BXAMKRSN (a9280

Director
DIN : 01354843

Place - Mumbai
Date - May 24, 2022

Director
DIN : 09523460



KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(INR In Lakhs)

For the Year
onded

For the Year
ended

Particulars
March 31,2022  March 31, 2021

A. Cash flow from Operating Actlvities

Profit before tax as per Profit & Loss Account 1,299.10 524,57
Loss on sale of Car 5.61 1.26
Interest Income (79.97) (4.17)
Finance costs 17.30 -
(Profit)loss on sale Investment (18.25) (3.02)
Depreciation & Amortization 271.06 246.12
Operating profit before working capital changes Adjustment for 1,494.85 764.76
(Increase) / decrease in Stock / W.L.P. (617.38) 24B.56
(Increase) / decrease in Sundry Debtors 440.47 448.04
(Increase) / decrease in Loans & Advances 0.21 0.53
(Increase) / decrease in Other Current Assets (308.72) (30.17)
Increase / (decrease) in Sundry Creditors (120.98) (174.68)
Increase / (decrease) in Other Current Liabilities 149.48 561.36
Cash generated from operations 1,039.93 1,818.40
Direct taxes expenses (241.04) (117.89)
Net Cash flow from Operating Activities 798.89 1,700.50
B. Cash flow from Investing Activities

(Purchase) / Sale of Fixed Assets (347.60) (223.79)
(Purchase) / Sale of Investments (2,097.93) (644.09)
Proceeds from sale of Investment 18.25 3.02
Interest Income received 79.97 4.17
Net Cash flow from investing Activities (2,347.30) (860.69)
C. Cash flow from Financing Activities

Proceeds from Issue of Equity Shares / Share Application money - =
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Secured Loans (net) 1,521.23 (252.02)
Proceeds / (Repayment) of Unsecured Loans (net) 11.45 (355.23)
Finance costs (17.30) -
Net Cash flow from Financing Activities 1,515.38 (607.25)
Net Increase / (decrease) in cash and cash equivalent (33.02) 232.56
Cash and cash equivalent as at the beginning of the year 251.86 19.30
Cash and cash equivalent as at the closing of the year 218.84 251.86
Summary of Significant Accounting Policies 2
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The notes referred to above are an integral part of the financial statements

As per our report of even date attached

For K C P L And Associates LLP
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratign Number: 118223W

~
a,
Rakes® Agarwal 3 Gautam Makharia
Partner #) 4 Director
Membership Number: 170680\Zse UMBE DIN : 01354843
/?Gred Acco\‘*

Place - Mumbai

Place - Mumbai
Date - May 24, 2022

Date - May 24, 2022

UBIN . 22170685 AMKSEN (9280

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sanjeev S lava

Director
DIN : 09523460




KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

& iy

A : Equity Share Capital (Equity shares of INR 10 each Issuod, subscribod and fully pald)

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Place - Mumbai
Date - May 24, 2022

UBIN . 22\ TOLERSAMESMNG2S0

Date - May 24, 2022

F'articulars Note No. Number of Amount
sh INR | khs)
Balance as at the April 1, 2020 2;{8?000 (bR in L;;:.;u
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2020-21 F -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 13 2,710,000 271.00
Changes in equity share capital during the year 2021-22 = B
Balance at the March 31, 2022 13 2,710,000 271.00
B : Other Equity
{INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Note Share Reserve and Surplus Total Other
No. | Application [Securitios Debenture Retained Equity
money Premium | Redemption Earnings
pending | Reserve Reserve
allotment

Balance as at the April 1, 2020 329.00 246.00 808.51 1,383.50

Profit for the year - - - 377.94 377.94

Other Comprehensive Income - - - 0.57 0.57

Reserve Created during the year - - 246.00 (246.00) -
Balance as at March 31, 2021 14 - 329.00 492.00 941.02 1,762.02 |

Profit for the year - - - 974.12 974.12

Other Comprehensive Income - - - (1.56) (1.56)

Reserve Created during the year - - 246.00 (246.00) -
Balance as at March 31, 2022 14 - 329.00 738.00 1,667.58 2,734.57
As per our report of even date attached
For KC P L And Associates LLP For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registrafion Number: 119223W M

Agarwal Gautam Makharia Sanjeev Srivastava
Partner Director Director
Membership Number: 170685 DIN : 01354843 DIN : 09523460
Place - Mumbai



KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Note 1:

Note 2 :

Company Overview

Kisan Phosphates Private Limited (the “Company”) is a subsidiary of the Public Limited
Company “Shree Pushkar Chemicals & Fertilisers Limited", domiciled in India and
incorporated on August 13, 2012 under the provisions of Companies Act, 1956. The
registered office of the Company is located at 301-302, 31 Floor, Atlanta Center, Sonawala
Road, Goregaon (East), Mumbai — 400063,

The Company is engaged in the business of manufacturing and trading of Chemicals, Cattle
Feeds and Fertilisers.

The financial staléments are authorized for issue in accordance with a resolution of the
Board of Directors on May 24, 2022.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of

these financial statements. These accounting policies have been applied to all the years
presented by the Company unless otherwise stated.

A. Basis of preparation of financial statements

(i)

(i)

(i)

Statement of compliance

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting
Standards (“Ind-AS”) under the historical cost convention on the accrual basis except for
certain financial instruments which are measured at fair values, the provisions of the
Companies Act , 2013 (‘Act) (to the extent notified).The Ind-AS are prescribed under
Section 133 of the Act read with Rule 3 of the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015 and Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Amendment Rules, 2016.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting
standard is initially adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires a
change in the accounting policy hitherto in use.

Basis of preparation
The financial statements have been prepared on historical cost basis except the following:

e certain financial assets and liabilities (including derivative instruments) are measured at

fair value;
e assets held for sale- measured at fair value less cost to sell;

»  defined benefit plans- plan assets measured at fair value; and

The functional currency of the Company is the Indian Rupee. These financial statements are
presented in Indian Rupees and all values are rounded to the nearest lakhs, except when

otherwise stated.
Current versus non-current classification

The Company presents assets and liabilities in the balance sheet based on current/ non-
current classification,

An asset is treated as current when it is:

Expected to be realised or intended to be sold or consumed in normal operating cycle
Held primarily for the purpose of trading




KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED MARCH 31, 2022

e Expected to be realised within twelve months after the reporting period, or
« Cash or cash equivalent unless restricted from being exchanged or used to sattle a liability
for al least twelve months after the reporting period.

All other assets are classified as non-current.

A liability is current when
e It _is expected to be settled in normal operating cycle, it is held primarily for the purpose of
zrﬁf;g%ue to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period or,

« There is no unconditional right to defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months
after the reporting period.

The Company classifies all other liabilities as non-current.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are classified as non-current assets and liabilities.
The operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their

realisation in cash and cash equivalents. The Company has identified twelve months as its
operating cycle.

. Use of estimates

The preparation of the financial statements in conformity with Ind-AS requires management to
make estimates, judgments and assumptions. These estimates, judgments and assumptions
affect the application of accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the
disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements and reported
amounts of revenues and expenses during the period. Application of accounting policies that
require critical accounting estimates involving complex and subjective judgments and the use of
assumptions in these financial statements have been disclosed in note C below. Accounting
estimates could change from period to period. Actual results could differ from those estimates.
Appropriate changes in estimates are made as management becomes aware of changes in
circumstances surrounding the estimates. Changes in estimates are reflected in the financial
statements in the period in which changes are made and, if material, their effects are disclosed in

the notes to the financial statements.
. Critical accounting estimates

(i) Income taxes

The Company's major tax jurisdiction is India. Significant judgements are involved in
determining the provision for income taxes, including amount expected to be paid/ recovered
for uncertain tax positions.

(ii) Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment represent a significant proportion of the asset base _of the
Company. The charge in respect of periodic depreciation is derived after determining an
estimate of an asset's expected useful life and the expected residual value at the end of its
life. The useful lives and residual values of Company's assets are determined by
management at the time the asset is acquired and reviewed periodically, including at each
financial year end. The lives are based on historical experience with similar assets as well as
anticipation of future events, which may impact their life, such as changes in technology.

2ININ100021
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KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 1, 2022

() Defined benefit plans

The cost of the defined benefit gratuity plan and other post-employment benefits and the
present value of the gratuity obligation are determined using actuarial valuations. An
actuarial valuation involves making various assumplions that may differ from actual
developments in the future. These Include the determination of the discount rate, future
salary increases and mortality rates. Due to the complexities involved in the valuation and its
long-term nature, a defined benefit obligation s highly sensitive to changes in these
assumptions. All assumptions are reviewed at each reporting date,

The parameter most subject to change Is the discount rate. In determining the appropriate
discount rate for plans operated in India, the management considers the Interest rates of
government bonds in currencies consistent with the currencies of the post-employment

benefit obligation.

The mortality rate is based on publicly available mortality tables. Those mortality tables tend
to change only at interval in response to demographic changes. Future salary increases and
gratuity increases are based on expected future inflation rates.

Further details about gratuity obligations are given in Note 40

(iv) Fair value measurement of financial instruments

When the fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities recorded in the balance sheet
cannot be measured based on quoted prices in active markets, their fair value is measured
using valuation techniques. The inputs to these models are taken from observable markets
where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of judgement is required in
establishing fair values. Judgements include considerations of inputs such as liquidity risk,
credit risk and volatility. Changes in assumptions about these factors could affect the
reported fair value of financial instruments. See Note 34-36 for further disclosures.

(v} Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company’s contracts with customers include promises to provide the gcods & services
to the customers. Judgement is required to determine the transaction price for the contract.
The transaction price could be either fixed amount of customer consideration or variable
consideration with elements such as schemes, incentives, cash discounts etc. The
estimated amount of variable consideration is adjusted in the transaction price only to the
extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal in the amount of cumulative
revenue recognized will not occur and is reassessed at the end of the each period.

Estimates of rebates and discounts are sensitive to changes in circumstances and the
Company's past experience regarding returns and rebate entitlements may not be
representative of customer's actual returns and rebate entitiements in the future.

Costs to obtain a contract are generally expensed as incurred. The assessrlnentl of this
criteria requires the application of judgement, in particular when considerlng_lf costs
generate or enhance resources to be used to satisfy future performance obligations and

whether costs are expected to be recovered.

D. Property, Plant and Equipment

ments) is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant
and equipment are stated in the balance sheet at cost historical less accumulated depreciation
and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Such cost includes the cost of rep!acing part of ghe
plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction projects if the recognition
criteria are met. All other repair and maintenance costs are recognised in profit or loss as

incurred.

Land (including Land Develop




KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Properties in the course of construction for production, supply or administrative purposes are
carried at cost, less any recognized impairment loss. Cost includes professional fees and, for
qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalized in accordance with the Company's accounting
policy. Such properties are classified to the appropriate categories of property, plant and
equipment when completed and ready for intended use, Depr

: eciation of these assets, on the
same basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are ready for their intended
use.

Subsequent to recognition, property, plant and equipment (excluding freehold land) are measured
at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment losses. When significant
parts qf property, plant and equipment are required to be replaced in intervals, the Company

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets (other than freehold land and land
developments) less their residual values over the useful lives, using the straight- line method
("SLM"). Management believes that the useful lives of the assets reflect the periods over which
these assets are expected to be used, which are as follows:

Description of Asset Estimated useful lives
Buildings 30 years
Leasehold lands 30 years
Computers and Printers, including Computer Peripherals (including 3 -6 years
server and networking)

Office Equipment’s 5 years
Furniture and Fixtures _ 10 years

Motor Vehicles (including busses and trucks) 8-20 years

Plant and Machinery 15-20 years

Depreciation on additions/ deletions to fixed assets is calculated pro-rata from/ up to the date of
such additions/ deletions.

Assets individually costing less than Rs. 5,000 are fully depreciated in the year of acquisition.

The carrying values of property, plant and equipment are reviewed for impairment when events or
changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying value may not be recoverable. The residual
values, useful life and depreciation method are reviewed at each financial year-end to ensure that
the amount, method and period of depreciation are consistent with previous estimates and the
expected pattern of consumption of the future economic benefits embodied in the items of
property, plant and equipment.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected to arise from the continued use of phe ass_et. Any gain or loss
arising on disposal or retirement of an item of property, plant and equupmentv is detemjmec! as the
difference between sale proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and is recognised in profit
or loss.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties that is held for long-term rentals yields or for capital

appreciation (including property under construction for such purposes) or both, and that is not
occupied by the Company, is classified as investment property.




KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022
Investment properties are measured initially at cost, includ

initial recognition, investment properties are stated at cost
any.

ing transaction costs. Subsequent to
less accumulated impairment loss, if

Though t‘he Company measureslinvestment property using cost based measurement, the fair
value of investment property is disclosed in the notes, Fair values are determined based on an
annual evaluation performed by an accredited external independent valuer.

Investment properties are de-recognised either when they have hee
are permanently withdrawn from use and no future economic be

Intangible Assets

Intangible asset inclugzling intangible assets under development are stated at cost, net of
accumulated amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Intangible assets acquired
separately are measured on initial recognition at cost.

Intangible assets in case of computer software are amortised on straight-line basis over a period
of 3 years, based on management estimate. The amortization period and the amortisation
method are reviewed at the end of each financial year.

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite. Intangible assets
with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at
least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset are considered to
modify the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in
accounting estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible assets with infinite lives is
recognised in the statement of profit and loss unless such expenditure forms part of carrying
value of another asset.

. Impairment of Non-Financial Assets

Assessment is done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any indication that an
asset (tangible and intangible) may be impaired. For the purpose of assessing impairment, the
smallest identifiable group of assets that generates cash inflows from continuing use that are
largely independent of the cash inflows from other assets or groups of assets, is considered as a
cash generating unit. If any such indication exists, an estimate of the recoverable amount of the
asset/ cash generating unit is made. Assets whose carrying value exceeds their recow_erahle
amount are written down to the recoverable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the
profit or loss. Recoverable amount is higher of an asset's or cash ge_nerating unit's net selling
price and its value in use. Value in use is the present value of' estimated future ca_sh flows
expected to arise from the continuing use of an asset and from its disposal at the.end of_ﬂs_use:ful
life. Assessment is also done at each Balance Sheet date as to whether there is any |nd|c_at|on
that an impairment loss recognised for an asset in prior accounting periods may no longer exist or
may have decreased. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

. Financial instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a
financial liability or equity instrument of another entity. Financial Instruments are further divided in
two parts viz. Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities.
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KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2022

Part | - Financial Assets

a)

b)

Initial recognition and measurement

All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial assets not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the
acquisition of the financial asset. Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation or convention in the market place

(regular way trades) are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company
commits to purchase or sell the asset.

Subsequent measurement

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in four categories:

Financial Assets at amortised cost:
A Financial Assets is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

* The asset is held within a business model whose objective is to hold assets for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

* Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount outstanding.

This category is the most relevant to the Company. After initial measurement, such financial

assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in
finance income in the profit or loss. The losses arising from impairment are recognised in the
profit or loss.

Financial Assets at FVTOCI (Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income)
A Financial Assets is classified as at the FVTOCI if following criteria are met:

* The objective of the business model is achieved both by collecting contractual cash flows
(i.e. SPPI) and selling the financial assets

Financial instruments included within the FVTOCI category are measured initially as well as at
each reporting date at fair value. Fair value movements are recognized in the other
comprehensive income (OCI). However, the Company recognizes interest income,
impairment losses and reversals and foreign exchange gain or loss in the statement of profit
and loss. On de-recognition of the asset, cumulative gain or loss previously recognised in OCI
is reclassified from the equity to the statement of profit and loss. Interest earned whilst holding
FVTOCI debt instrument is reported as interest income using the EIR method.

Financial Assets at FVTPL (Fair Value through Profit or Loss)

FVTPL is a residual category for financial instruments. Any financial instrument, which does
not meet the criteria for categorization as at amortized cost or as FVTOCI, is classified as at
FVTPL.

In addition, the Company may elect to designate a financial instrument, which otherwise
meets amortized cost or FVTOCI criteria, as at FVTPL. However, such election is allowed
only if doing so reduces or eliminates a measurement or recognition inconsistency (referred to

as 'accounting mismatch’). The Company has not designated any financial instrument as at
FVTPL.
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KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Financial instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measured at fair value, Equity instruments
which are held for trading and contingent consideration recognised by an acquirer in a
business combination to which Ind-AS 103 applies are classified as at FVTPL. For all other
equity instruments, the Company may make an irrevocable election to present in other
comprehensive income subsequent changes in the fair value. The Company makes such
election on an instrument by instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition
and is irrevocable. If the Company decides to classify an equity instrument as at FVTOCI,
then all fair value changes on the instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCI.
There is no recycling of the amounts from OCI to P&L, even on sale of investment. However,
the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity.

Equity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair value with all
changes recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss. Investment in subsidiaries is carried
at cost in the financial statements.

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar
financial assets) is primarily de-recognised (i.e. removed from the Company's balance sheet)
when:

» The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired, or
The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a ‘pass-through' arrangement; and either (a) the Company has
transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Company has
neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, but
has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates if and to what extent it has retained the
risks and rewards of ownership. When it has neither transferred nor retairned substantially all
of the risks and rewards of the asset, ncr transferred control of the asset, the Company
continues to recognise the transferred asset to the extent of the Company's continuing
involvement. In that case, the Company also recognises an associated liability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights
and obligations that the Company has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is
measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and the maximum amount
of consideration that the Company could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with Ind-AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for
measurement and recognition of impairment loss on the following financial assets and credit

risk exposure:

e Financial assets that are debt instruments, and are measured at amortised cost e.g,,
loans, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance;
Financial assets that are debt instruments and are measured as at FVTOCI
Lease receivables under Ind-AS 116




KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

* Trade receivables or any contractual right to receive cash or another financial asset that
result from transactions that are within the scope of Ind-AS 18 (referred to as ‘contractual
revenue receivables' in these financial statements)

* Loan commitments which are not measured as at FVTPL

* Financial guarantee contracts which are not measured as at FVTPL

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables or contract revenue receivables.

The application of simplified approach does not require the Company to track changes in

credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs at each
reporting date, right from its initial recognition.

For recognition of impairment loss on other financial assets and risk exposure, the Company
determines that whether there has been a significant increase in the credit risk since initial
recognition. If credit risk has not increased significantly, 12-month ECL is used to provide for
impairment loss. However, if credit risk has increased significantly, lifetime ECL is used. If, in
a subsequent period, credit quality of the instrument improves such that there is no longer a
significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition, then the Company reverts to
recognising impairment loss allowance based on 12-month ECL. Lifetime ECL are the
expected credit losses resulting from all possible default events over the expected life of a
financial instrument. The 12-month ECL is a portion of the lifetime ECL which results from
default events that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that are due to the Company in
accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the entity expects to receive (e, all
cash shortfalls), discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, the Company
considers:

* All contractual terms of the financial instrument (including prepayment, extension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases
when the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the
Company uses the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument; and

* Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral
to the contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss
allowance on portfolio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically
observed default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for
forward-looking estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are
updated and changes in the forward-looking estimates are analysed. On that basis, the
Company estimates the following provision matrix at the reporting date:

ECL impairment loss allowance (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as
income/ expense in the statement of profit and loss. This amount is grouped under the head
‘other expenses’. The balance sheet presentation for various financial instruments is
described below:

* Financial assets measured as at amortised cost, contractual revenue receivables and
lease receivables: ECL s presented as an allowance, i.e., as an integral part of the
measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces the net
carrying amount. Until the asset meets write-off criteria, the Company does not reduce
impairment allowance from the gross carrying amount,

* Loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts: ECL is presented as a provision in
the balance sheet, i.e. as a liability,

* Debt instruments measured at FVTOCI: Since financial assets are already reflected at fair
value, impairment allowance is not further reduced from its value. Rather, ECL amount is
presented as ‘accumulated impairment amount’ in the OCI,
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For assessing increase in credit risk and impairment loss, the Company combines financial
instruments on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of facilitating

an analysis that is designed to enable significant increases in credit risk fo be identified on a
timely basis.

The Company dogs not have any purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial
assets, i.e, financial assets which are credit impaired on purchase/ origination.

Part Il - Financial Liabilities

a)

b)

Initial recognition and measurement

The Company’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings
including bank overdrafts, financial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.
All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and
borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable transaction costs.

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial liabilities at fair value
throu_gh profit or loss, loans and borrowings, payables, or as derivatives designated as
hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

Subsequent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilities depends on their classification, as described below:
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading
and financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classified as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of
repurchasing in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments
entered into by the Company that are not designated as hedging instruments in hedge
relationships as defined by Ind-AS 109. Separated embedded derivatives are also classified
as held for trading unless they are designated as effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss is
designated as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind-AS 109 are
satisfied. For liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes
in own credit risks are recognized in OCI. These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred
to statement of profit and loss. However, the Company may transfer the cumulative gain or
loss within equity. All other changes in fair value of such liability are recognised in the
statement of profit or loss. The Company has not designated any financial liability as at fair
value through profit and loss.

Loans and borrowings

This is the category most relevant to the Company. After initial recognition, interest-bearing
loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the EIR method.
Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are de-recognised as well

as through the EIR amortisation process,

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as
finance costs in the statement of profit and loss. This category generally applies to

borrowings.
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Preference shares, which are mandatorily redeemable on a specific date, are classified as
liabilities under borrowings. The dividends on these preference shares, if any are recognised
in the profit or loss as finance cost.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Company are those contracts that require a
payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss it incurs because the specified debtor
fails to make a payment when due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.
Financial guarantee contracts are recognised initially as a liability at fair value, adjusted for
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the issuance of the guarantee, Subsequently,
the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss allowance determined as per
impairment requirements of Ind-AS 109 and the amount recognised less cumulative
amortisation.

¢) De-recognition

A financial liability is de-recognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or
cancelled or expires. When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same
lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original
liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

d) Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the
balance sheet if there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts
and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities
~ simultaneously.
\
Derivative financial instruments and hedge accounting

Initial recognition and subsequent measurement:

The Company uses derivative financial instruments, such as forward currency contracts and
interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign currency risks and interest rate risks, respectively.

Such derivative financial instruments are initially recognised at fair value on the date on which a
derivative contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at fair value. Derivatives are
carried as financial assets when the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when the fair
value is negative.

The purchase contracts that meet the definition of a derivative under Ind-AS 109 are recognised
in the statement of profit and loss. Any gains or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at lower of cost on First-In-First-Out (FIFO) or net realizable value after
providing for obsolescence and other losses, where considered necessary. Cost of inventories
comprises all costs of purchase and other costs incurred in bringing the inventories to their
present location and condition. Cost of purchased inventory is determined after deducting rebates
and discounts. Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of
business, less estimated costs of completion and estimated costs necessary to make the sale,
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K. Revenue from contracts with customers

The Company derives revenues primarily from manufacturing and trading of Chemicals, Dyes
and Dyes Intermediate and other allied products,

Ind AS 115 "Revenue from Contracts with Customers" provides a control- based revenue
recognition model and provides a five step application approach to be followed for revenue
recognition.

Identify the contract(s) with a customer:

Identify the performance obligations:

Determine the transaction price;

Allocate the transaction price to the performance obligations;

Recognize revenue when or as an entity satisfies performance obligations

® ® 0 e 9

Revenue from contracts with customers is recognized when control of the goods or services are
transferred to the customer, at an amount that reflects the consideration to which the Company
expects to be entitled in exchange for those goods or services. Revenue is recognized when no
significant uncertainty exists as to its realization or collection.

The amount recognised as revenue in its Statement of Profit and Loss is exclusive of Goods and
Service Tax and is net of discounts.

Contract balances

Trade receivables

A receivable represents the Company’s right to an amount of consideration that is unconditional
(i.e., only the passage of time is required before payment of the consideration is due). Refer to
accounting policies of financial assets in section (h) Financial Instruments.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is the obligation to perform the services as agreed with the customer for which
the Company has received consideration (or an amount of consideration is due) fro.m the
customer. A contract liability is recognised when the payment is made or the payment is due
(whichever is earlier). Contract liabilities are recognized as revenue when the Company performs

under the contract.

Export benefits are accounted for in the year of exports based on eligibility and when there is no
uncertainty in receiving the same, .

Other Income

Dividend income from investments is recognised when the shareholder’s right to receive payment
has been established (provided that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

company and the amount of income can be measured reliably).

Interest income from financial assets is recognized when it is probable that economic benefits will
flow to the company and the amount of income can be rne_asured reliably. Intgresll income is
accrued on a time basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest rate
applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash. receipts lr;rough the
expected life of the financial assets to that assel's net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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M. Provisions and Contingent Liabllities

General

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-
tax rate lhat reﬂeqls, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is
used, the increase in the provision due to the passage of time is recognised as a finance cost.

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from Past events whose existence will be
confirmed by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond
the control of the Company or a present obligation that is not recognized because it is not
probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation. The Company does
not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its existence in the financial statements.
Payments in respect of such liabilities, if any are shown as advances.

N. Accounting for Taxation of Income

(i) Current taxes

Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in the statement of profit and loss except to the
extent that it relates to items recognized directly in other comprehensive income or equity, in
which case it is recognized in other comprehensive income or equity respectively. Current
income tax is recognized at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax
authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the balance sheet date. The Company offsets, on a year to year basis, the current tax
assets and liabilities, where it has legally enforceable right to do so and where it intends to
settie such assets and liabilities on a net basis.

(ii) Deferred taxes

Deferred tax is recognized on differences between the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the computation
of taxable profit and are accounted for using the balance sheet liability method. Deferred tax
liabilities are generally recognized for all taxable temporary differences, and deferred tax
assets are generally recognized for all deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profits will be available against which those deductible temporary
differences can be utilized. Such assets and liabilities are not recognized if the temporary
difference arises from goodwill or from the initial recognition (other than in a business
combination) of other assets and liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable

profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax relating to items recognised outside profit or loss is reco_gnised outside p{oﬁt or
loss (either in other comprehensive income or in equity). Deferred tax items are recognised in
correlation to the underlying transaction either in OCI or directly in equity.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets Is reviewed at eaqh balance sheet date and
reduced fo the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.
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Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by
the same taxation authority and the Company intends to settle its current tax assets and
liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the year when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws)
that have been enacted or substantively enacted at the reporting date,

. Fair value measurement

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each balance
sheet date.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to settle a liability in an
orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date, regardless of whether
that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation technique

In estimating the fair value of an asset or liability, the Company takes into account the
Characteristics of the asset or liability if market participants would use when pricing the asset or
liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements

are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level

input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:

* Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities

* Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable

» Level 3 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the
Company determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-
assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

The Company's Management determines the policies and procedures for both recurring fair value
measurement, such as derivative instruments and unquoted financial assets measured at fair
value, and for non-recurring measurement, such as assets held for distribution in discontinued

operations.

This note summarises accounting policy for fair value. Other fair value related disclosures are
given in the relevant notes. '

Foreign Currency-Transactions and Balances

The Company’s functional currency is INR and accordingly, the financial statements are
presented in INR,

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded by the company in their functional
currency spot rates at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition,

Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency spot rates of exchange at the reporting period. Gains and losses arising on account of
differences in foreign exchange rates on settlement/ translation of monetary assets and liabilities
are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss except exchange dlffe_rences on foreign
currency borrowings relating to assets under construction for future productive use, which are
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included in the cost of those assets when they are re j i
1 garded as an adjustment to r
those foreign currency borrowings. j iierest costs on

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are
!ranslated using the exchange rates as at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monetary
items measured at fair value in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of non-monetary
items measured at fair value is treated in line with the recognition of the gain or loss on the
phange in fair value of the item (i.e. translation differences on items whose fair value gain or loss
Is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognised in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).

. Borrowing Costs

Genera! and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisilion, construction or
production of qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time
to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time
as the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale. All other borrowing costs are
recognised in Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they are incurred.

Leases
As alessor

Lease income from operating leases where the Company is a lessor is recognized in income on a
straight-line basis over the lease term unless the receipts are structured to increase in line with
expected general inflation to compensate for the expected inflationary cost increases. The
respective leased assets are included in the balance sheet based on their nature.

As a lessee

The Company recognizes a right-of-use asset and a lease liability at the lease commencement
date. The right-of-use asset is initially measured at cost, which comprises the initial amount of the
lease liability adjusted for any lease payments made at or before the commencement date, plus
any initial direct costs incurred and an estimate of costs to dismantle and remove the underlying
asset or to restore the underlying asset or the site on which it is located, less any lease incentives
received. The right-of-use asset is subsequently depreciated using the straight-line method from
the commencement date to the end of the lease term.

The determination of whether an arrangement is a lease, or contains a lease, is based on the
substance of the arrangement and requires an assessment of whether the fulfilment of the
arrangement is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets or whether the arrangement
conveys a right to use the asset. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys the
right to control the use of an identified asset for a time in exchange fqr a consideration. The
Company, at the inception of a contract, assesses whether the contract is a Iegse or not lease.
For arrangements entered into prior to April 01, 2019, the Company has det.er!mned whether the
arrangement contains a lease on the basis of facts and circumstances existing on the date of

transition.

The estimated useful lives of right-of-use assets are determined on the same_basis as those of
property, plant and equipment. In addition, the right-of-use asset is perlodnca_.\lly. .reduced by
impairment losses, if any, and adjusted for certain re-measurements of the lease liability.

The lease liability is initially measured at the present value of the lease payments that are not
paid at the commencement date, discounted using incremental borrowlqg rate. For Iea_ses with
reasonably similar characteristics, the Company, on a lease by lease basis, may adopt Etth?trf tll1_e
incremental borrowing rate specific to the lease or the incremental borrowing rate for the portfolio

as a whole.

e o
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Lease payments included in the measurement of the lease liability compriaes of fixad paymants,
including in-substance fixed payments, amounts expected to be payable undar a residual value
guarantee and the exercise price under a purchase option that the Company ia reasanahly
certain to exercise, lepse payments in an optional renewal period if the Company ia reasnnably
certain to exercise an extension option

The lease lability is subsequently remeasured at amortised coat using the effectiva interast
method. It is remeasured when there is a change in future lease payments arising from a change
in an index or rate, if there is a change in the Company's estimate of the amount expected ta ha
payable under a residual value guarantee, or if Company changes its assessment of whather it
will exercise a purchase, extension or termination option.

When the lease liability is remeasured in this way, a corresponding adjustment is made to the
carrying amount of the right-of-use asset or is recorded in profit or loss if the carrying amount of
the right-of-use asset has been reduced to zero.

Lease liability and the right of use asset will be separately presented in the balance sheet and
lease payments will be classified as financing activities.

The Company has elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease liabilities for short term
leases that have a lease term of less than or equal to 12 months with no purchase option and
assets with low value leases. The Company recognises the lease payments associated with
these leases as an expense in standalone statement of profit and loss over the lease term. The
related cash flows are classified as operating activities.

Employee Benefits
a) Short-term obligations

Liabilities for wages and salaries, including non-monetary benefits that are expected to be
settled wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employees render the
related service are recognised in respect of employee's services up to the end of the reporting
period and are measured at the undiscounted amounts of the benefits expected to be paid
when the liabilities are settled. The liabilities are presented as current employee benefit
obligations in the balance sheet.

b) Other Long-term employee benefit obligations

The liabilities for compensated absences (annual leave) which are not expected to be settled
wholly within 12 months after the end of the period in which the employee render the related
service are presented as non-current employee benefits obligations. They are therefore
measured as the present value of expected future payments to be made in respect of
services provided by employees up to the end of the reporting period using the Projected Unit
Credit method. The benefits are discounted using the market yields at the end of the reporting
period on government bonds that have terms approximating to the terms of the related
obligations. Re-measurements as a result of experience adjustments and changes in actuarial
assumptions (i.e. actuarial losses/ gains) are recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

The obligations are presented as current in the balance sheet, if the Company does not have
an unconditional right to defer settiement for at least twelve months after the reporting period,
regardiess of when the actual settlement is expected to occur.

c) Post- employment obligations
The Company operates the following post-employment schemes:

(i) Defined benefit plans such as gratuity

(i) Defined contribution plans such as provident fund.
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Defined benefit plan - Gratuity Obligations

The Company provides for gratuity, a defined benefit plan (the “Gratuity Plan") covering
eligible employees in accordance with the Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972. The Gratuity Plan
provides a lump sum payment to vested employees at retirement, death, incapacitation or
termination of employment, of an amount based on the respective employee's salary and the
tenure of employment.

The liability or asset recognised in the balance sheet in respect of defined benefit gratuity
plans is the present value of the defined benefit obligation at the end of the reporting period
less the fair value of plan assets. The defined benefit obligation is actuarially determined
using the Projected Unit Credit method.

The present value of the defined benefit obligation is determined by discounting the estimated
future cash outflows by reference to market yields at the end of the reporting period on
government bonds that have a terms approximating to the terms of the obligation

The net interest cost, calculated by applying the discount rate to the net balance of the
defined benefit obligation and the fair value of the plan assets, is recognised as employee
benefit expenses in the statement of profit and loss.

Remeasurements gzins and losses arising from experience adjustments and changes in
actuarial assumptions zre recognised in the other comprehensive income in the year in which
they arise and are not subsequently reclassified to Statement of Profit and Loss.

Changes in the present value of the defined benefit obligation resulting from plan
amendments or curtailments are recognised immediately in profit or loss as past service cost.

Defined Contribution Plan

The Company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds as
per local regulatory authorities. The Company has no further obligations once the
contributions have been paid. The contributions are accounted for as defined contribution
plans and the contributions are recognised as employee benefit expense when they are due.

Earnings Per Share

Basic Earnings Per Share (EPS) amounts are calculated by dividing @he profit for the year
attributable to equity holders by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding

during the year.

Diluted earnings per share adjusts the figures used in the determination of basic earnings per
share to take into account:

The after income tax effect of interest and other financing costs associated with dilutive
potential equity shares, and

Weighted average number of equity shares that would have been outstanding assuming the
conversion of all the dilutive potential equity.

. Cash and Cash Equivalents

i i ' hand and short-
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on 'd
term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less from the date of acquisition, which

are subject to an insignificant risk of changes Iin value,

o &
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Insurance claims

Insurance claims are accounted for on the basis of claims admitted ! expected to be admitted and
to the extent that there is no uncertainty in receiving the claims.

- Segment Reporting

The Company identifies operating segments based on the internal reporting provided to the chief
operating decision-maker.

The chief operating decision-maker, who is responsible for allocaling resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the Board of Directors that rnakes
strategic decisions.

The accounting policies adopted for segment reporting are in line with the accounting policies of
the Company. Segment revenue, segment expenses have been identified to segments on the
basis of their relationship to the operating activities of the segment.

Recent pronouncements

On March 23, 2022, the Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA") through a notification amended
Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013. The amendments revise Division |, Il and Il of
Schedule Il and are applicable from April 1, 2022. Key amendments relating to Division Il which
relate to companies whose financial statements are required to comply with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 are:

Ind AS 103 - Reference to Cenceptual Framework

The amendments specify that to qualify for recognition as part of applying the acquisition method,
the identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed must meet the definitions of assets and
liabilities in the Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting under Indian Accounting
Standards (Conceptual Framework) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India at
the acquisition date. These changes do not significantly change the requirements of In AS 103.
The Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial

statements.
Ind AS 16 — Proceeds before intended use

The amendments mainly prohibit an entity from deducting from the cost of property, plant and
equipment amounts received from selling items produced while the company is preparing the
asset for its intended use. Instead, an entity will recognize such sales proceeds and related cost
in profit or loss. The Company does not expect the amendments to have any impact in its

recognition of its property, plant and equipment in its financial statements.

Ind AS 37 - Onerous Contracts - Costs of Fulfilling a Contract

The amendments specify that that the ‘cost of fulfilling' a contract comprlses !he ‘costs that relate
directly to the contract’. Costs that relate directly to a contract can either be lnqremental costs of
fulfilling that contract (examples would be direct labor, materials) or an allocathr_\ of‘ other costs
that relate directly to fulfilling contracts. The amendment is essgntlally a clarification and tt}e
Company does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial

statements.
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Ind AS 109 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendment clarifies which fees an entity includes when it applies the ‘10 percent’ test of In
AS 109 in assessing whether to derecognize a financial liability. The Company does not expect
the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statements.

Ind AS 116 — Annual Improvements to Ind AS (2021)

The amendments remove the illustration of the reimbursement of leasehold improvements by the
lessor in order to resolve any potential confusion regarding the treatment of lease incentives that
might arise because of how lease incentives were described in that illustration. The Company
does not expect the amendment to have any significant impact in its financial statement
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KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

$ .50

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Note 4 : Non-Current Financlal Assets - |
(INR In Lakhs)
= As at As at
Particulars
—March 31,2022 |  March3i, 2021
Investment in Bonds
| 10.50% Royal Sundaram General Insurance Company Limited 2027, Nil (March 31, 2021 ; 63 Units) . 644,09
Total g 644,09 |
Note 5 : Non-Current Financial Assets - Others
(INR In Lakhs)_
Particulars As at As at

March 31, 2022

March 31, 2021

Carried at amortised cost
sits 2081 20,81
2081 2001
Note & : Other Non-Current Assets
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Capital Advances 0.18 2880
Total 0.18 2880 |
Note 7 : Inventories
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Raw Matenal 1,733.28 1,029.49
Work-in-Process 96.45 179.02
Finished Goods 141.72 141.61
Packing Matenal 62.62 50.08
Stores and Spares 43.52 58.80
Power and Fuel 5.28 6.50
= ; 208287 146550
Details of Work-in-Progress:
Chemicals - 80.32
Fertilizers & Allied Products 96.45 88.70
Cattie Feeds - -
TOTAL 96.45 179.02 |
Detaiis of Finished Goods:
Chemicals 107.55 67.61
Fertilzers & Allied Products 29.38 4233
Cattie Feeds 4.80 31.67
TOTAL 141.72 141.61 |
Note 8 : Current Financial Assets - Trade Receivables
(INR in Lakhs)
. As at As at
S March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade Receivables considered good - Secured - -
Trade Receivables considered good - Unsecurad 534,74 975.21
Trade Receivables which have significant increase in Credit Risk 382 B.33
Less: Alliowance for credit losses (3.82) (8.33)
Trade Receivabies - credit ii ired e -
E—“A 534.74 975.21
ivables outstandi r i (INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of payment
Less than 6 Total
months 6 Months-1 Year 1-2 Years 2.3 Years More than 3 Years
1)Undispuled Trade receivables —
considered 505.12 - 2082 . - 534.74
2)Undisputed Trade Receivables —
which have significant increase on
credit 382 - - . i 3.82
3)Undisputed Trade receivables — credit
impaired & 5 - « - -
4) Disputed Trade Receivabl
5)Disputed Trade Receivables -which
have significant increase on credit. - - % ! Ll bl
6)Disputed Trade Receivables — credit

(=
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é ii‘l I! , KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 3, 2022

es outstanding as at March 31,2021 Is as follows ;- {INA In Lakhs)
Particulars Out g for following perlacs from dua date of paymant
Less than 6 ' Total
th 6 Months-1 Year B L ___23Years __Morn than 3 Yaars
1)Undisputed Trade receivables —
considered 03138 03 - . 975.21
Z)Undisputed 1rade Receivables —
which have significant increats on
credit 833 . s . . 8.33
JUndisputed Trade recelvables — credil
) Disputed 1Trde Recelvables-
EjDveputed Trade Receivables -which
have significant increase on credit - . M 2 = "
E)Ovsputed Trade Receivables — credit
i d a . & “ 4 .
Note © ; Current Financial Aseets - Cash and Cash Equivalents
(INR in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As st
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Bank Balances
- In curent accounts 248 7.02
- In Cash Credit Accounts (Refer Note No. 18) 21218 24413
Cash on Hand 422 0.71
Total 218.84 251,86 |
Note 10 : Current Financial Assets - Investments
{INR In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Investment in Bonds
7.75% Aragen Life Sciences Private Limited 2025, 183 Units ( March 31, 2021 : Nif) 1,627.99 -
£.50 % Adani Enterpnses Limited 2024, 92 Units (March 31, 2021 : Nil) 914.02 -
| Total__ —2.742.01 -
Note 11 : Current Financial Assets - Loans & Advances
INR in Lakhs
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Unsecured, considered good
Advances to Employees 0.69 0.90
Lol 069 0.90
Note 12 ; Other Current Assets
__(INR in Lakhs)
" As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Advances other than capital advances:
Advance payment to vendors 156.69 47.66
Deposit 30.45 20.45
Balance with GST Department 703.82 464.81
Income Taxes Net off Advance Tax and TDS - 2258
P id E: s 4.75 4688
| Total _895.71 560.37 |
Note 13 : Share Capital
(INR in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March M, 2022 March 31, 2021
(Authorised Capital
30,00,000 (March 31, 2021; 30,00,000) Equity sheres of Rs. 10 each 300.00 300.00 |
Issued, Subscribed and Paid up Capital
27,140,000 (March 31, 2021; 27,10,000} Equity shares of Rs. 10/- each fully paid up 271.00 271.00
Lotal 271.00 271.00
(a) Terms / rights attached to:
Eaquity Shares
The Company has one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10 per share. Each shareholder is eligible for one vole per share held The dividend proposad
by the Board of Direclors(il any) is subject 1o the app | of the sh lders In the Ing Annual G | Meeting. In the event of liquidation, the equity share
holders are eligible o receive the remaining assets of the company after n of all preferential \s in proportion to their share holding.

{b) Recenciliation of number of shares tanding st the beginning and at the end of the reporting year

Equity Shares:
Particulars As at March 31, 2022 As at March 31, 2021

Number of shares Amount Number of shares Amount
Balance as al the Beginning of the vear P XA ) I 1) P47 ] Em— 1
Ellalrn:.n as at :'w end n:hl:u ear 2,710, 1;00 Z'HT'IIO !.'-"10.';0_2 mﬂ_
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KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(c) Details of shares held by shareholders holding mors than 5% of the an

aregate sharas |n tha Company:

Equity Shares
Shares held by e AN WUNATCh 3T, BORE R Wareh 37, 3031
Number of Shares Numbar of Ghares | “
Shree Pushkar Chemicals and Fertilisers Lid SIS _iﬁiﬁ.fﬁ?— T | S ~—5Vi5 a0 5]
(d) Disch e of holding of Pro ey
Disclogure of sharehalding of Promoters as at March 31, 2022 is as follows; .
.'\ M_S!“Wl.mld by Promoters B E B
g —____AsalMarchd, 2022 2= 00 Asat March 31, 202 T oh
Promoters’ Name Number of shares % of Total Sharas Numbar of shares i ﬁ'agnmﬁ .n‘:::mn“ e
Shree Puzhkar Chemicals and
Fertilisers Limited 2,710,000 100.00% 2,710,000 100.00%
Disclosure ol & olding of Promoters as at March 31, 2021 I as follows; __
N Shares held by Promotars
. ____ AsatMarchdi, 2021 As at March 31, 2020 % Cha during t
Promoters’ Name Number of shares % of Total Shares Nowber of shares | % of Total Shares | "::“ s
Shree Pushkar Chemicals and
|Fertiisers Limited A4.710.000 100.00% 2,710,000 100.00% ;
Note 14 - Other Equity
{INR in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Securities Premium Reserve 329.00 329.00
1,067.58 841.02
1,220.99 1.22099
738.00 492 60
3,064.56 2,992.01
(i) Securities Premium Reserve:
[INR in Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
IBalmoe as at the beqinning of the year 329,00 329.00
]Ehhnue as at the end of the year 328.00 329.00
The amount standing in the S Pi account p to the premium received on issue of shares during the previous years.
(ii) Retained Eamings: —
(INR in Lakhs)
artieul As at As at
o fors March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance as at the beginning of the year 841.02 808.51
Add: Profit for the year fg:;,g} aﬁx;
Less: Debenture Redemption Reserve 1
Add: ltems of Other Comprehensive Income recognised directly in Retained Eamings (1.56} 0.57
Re-measurement gains/ (losses) on defined benefil obligations (net of tax)
|Balance as at the end of the year 1,667.58 941.02
{iii) Debenture: INR in Lakhs
{INR In Lakhs)
artic As at As at
. s March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
1,22,999 Optionally Convertible Debenture of Rs. 1000 Per Debent 1,229.09 122999 |
Balance a e r 1,229.99 1,229.99 |
1,22,8599 Optionally C. ible Debenture will be red inte 36,85,863 equity shares of the company after a period of 5 years from ils issue. After conversion

into equity shares it shall rank parl passu with the existing equily shares of the company.
(iv) Debenture Redemption Reserve:

INR In Lakhs
As at As at
hekmnd March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Balance as at the beginning of the year 492.00 2::.00
Add: Durni i 2;6.0@
Balance the end of the r 1 35:00. :

1 & ds Detk Red, "

During the eurrent year the company has sel-aside
per the provisions of Companies Act 2013. The

Reserve amounting to Rs. 246.00 Lacs lowards ascertained liabiity as
balance in this reserve will be utilized for repayment of debenture in tha subsaquent financial years.
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KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR FNDED MARCH 31, 2022

Note 15 : Non-Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings

(MR In Lakhs)

Particulars

A at
March 31, 2022

As at
March 31, 2021

Secured Term Loans

Rupee Term Loans from Ranks . 161.30
\ehicle Loans from Banks 2380 3.00
Less: Curren! Maturities of Long term debl (Refer note No. 21) 10.40 162.55
Total Non-Current Borrowings 13.20 1.75

Notes:

{a) Nature of security and terms of repayment for Secured Borrowings :

Terms of Repaymant

Nature of Sec:
Rupee Term Loan from Axis Bank Limited amounting to Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021 ; Rs, 161.30 lakhs) secured by the
thecation of assets created by said term Loan.

Repayabla in 12 quartely instalmants, Effective
Rale of interest B 25% p.a.

Rupee Vehicle Loan from Axis Bank Ltd. amounting to Rs. 0.44 lakhs (March 31, 2021 : Rs, 3.00 lakhs) secured by
i aid L

Repayable in 36 monthly instalments, Effective
R % 0.8

|the Hypothecation of assets created by said Loan
Rupee Vehicle Loan from Axis Bank Ltd, amounting to Rs. 7.48 lakhs (March 31, 2021 : Rs, Nil)

ate of interest 9.65'
Repayabla In 36 monthly instalments, Effective

d by the
thecation of assets created by said Loan.

i-!atu of interest 7.75% p.a.

Rupee Vehicle Loan from Axis Bank Ltd. amounting ta Rs. 15.66 lakhs (March 31, 2021 : Rs. Nil) sacurad by tha
Hypothecation of assels by said Loan,

Repayable in 35 monthly instalmants, Effective

Rate of interest 7.79% p.a.

Note 16 : Non-Current Provisions

) Firsl pari passu Charges by way of hypothecation on curent assels.

il) First pari passu Charges by way of hypothecation on All movable assets.
lii) First pari passu Charges by way of equitable/registered M
iv) Personal Guarantee : 1) Mr. Punit Makharia.
v} Corporale Guarantee of Ghree Pushkar Chemicals and lertilisers Lid.

{INR in Lakhs)
As at As at
Faeus March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Provision for Employee Benefits:
| Provision for Gratuity B.78 5.50
Total 578 5.50
Note 17 : Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
The major components of defarmed tax Liabilities/ (Assets) as a d In the fi are as follows:
INR in Lakhs
As at As at
g March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Deferred Tax Liabilifies/ (Assets) arising on account of timing differences in:
P Plant and Equip t including Ir ible Assets - D iati 80,65 80.87
Gratuity (1.16) (0.38)
Defined benefit Obligation remeasurement Gains/Losses - (0.34)
Allowances for credit losses 1.14 {2.32)]
Deferred Tax Liabilities !mt} 90.63 87.93
Note 18 : Other Non-Current Liabilities
(INR in Lakhs)
> As at As at
Fartieviare March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Security Deposit From Customers U 28.96
Total 34.21 28.96
Note 19 : Current Financial Liabilities - Borrowings
{INR In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
S d Loans (Repay on d d)
Working Capital Loans from Banks
Loans From Banks " -
Acceplances from Banks 2,890.52 1,276.54
L d Loans {Repay ond d)
Loan from others and Inter carporate Depaosit 19425 287.00
| Total 3,084.77 1,563.54
Notes:
1) ::‘rmng capital loans from Axis Bank Lid. Re. Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs. Nil) carries interest rale @ 7.45% p.a. (Previous Year 7.50 % p.a.} and are secured as
un .
Primary Security:

ipage of factory land and building of Gawar Road, Village Gawar, Dist Hissar, Haryana.
Ii) Mr. Gautam Makharia.

2) Working capital loans from Yes Bank Lid, Rs. Nil (March 31, 2021: Rs. Nil) carries interest rate @) 6 60% p a. (Previous Year : Nil) and are sacured as under:

Primary ;
i) First pari passu Charges by way of hypothecation on curent assels
ii) First pari passu Charges by way of hypothecation on All bie &

iii) First pari passu Charges by way of equitable/registersd Morigage of factory land and building of Gawar Road, Village Gawar, Dist Hissar, Haryana,
Ii) Mr. Gaulam Makharia.

Iv) Personal Guaraniee : Iy Mr. Punit Makharia.
v) Corporate Guaranites of Shree Pushkar Chemicals and lerlilisers Lid.
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KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAT

Note 20 : Current Financlal Liabllities - Trade Payablos

Particulars Qutstanding for follow 'g periods from dua date of payment
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 yoars More than 3 years Tos}
(i) MSME 085 3 B = 065
(i) Others 875.22 - - - 875.22
(iii) Disputed dues - MSME - . 7 = -
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - . % 3 p N
Total 876.07 - - = B76.07
Ageing for Trade Payabl tstanding as at March 31, 2021 is as foll - (INR in Lakhs)
Particulars Outstanding for following periods from due date of P t Total
Less than 1 year 1-2 years 2-3 years More than 3 years
(i) MSME 8.88 - - 8.88
(i) Others 988.19 - - 988.19
(iii} Disputed dues — MSME - = 5 = i
(iv) Disputed dues - Others - = - = -
Total 997.05 - - - 997.05
Note 21 : Current Financial Liabilities - Others
[INR in Lakhs)
i As at As at
Particuias March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Current Maturities of Long-Term Debt (Refer Note no. 15)
Rupee Term Loans from Banks - 150.00
Vehicle Loan from Banks 1040 255
L Total 10.40 15255
# Note 22 : Other Current Liabilities R
{INR in Lakhs)
) As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
i ted at Source and other indirect taxes) 1543 X 10.55
Statutory Tax Payable (Including Provident Fund, Tax Deducted al 10257 74726
Advance from Custnmersl | 21.73 i '_16
Employee Related Liabilities - 97|
Total _1,062.90 778
Note 23 : Current Provisions: (INR in Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2019
Provision for Employee benefits: 1.36 0.03
Provision for Gratuity
1.36 0.03
Total
Note 24 : Current Tax Liabilities (Net): (INR In Lakhs)
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
544,85 =
Provision for Income Tax Aus.0 2
Less: Income Tax Assets 80.65 :
Total

(m

EMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

I
Particulars As As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Trade Payable
Total Qutstanding Dues of Micro Enterprisas and Small Enterprises 0.85
Total Outstandi es of Creditors other than Micro Enterprises and Small Enterprises 875.22
Total 076.07

Note: The above informalion regarding micro and small en
ilable with the Company.

Ageing for Trade Payables outstandin,

as at March 31, 2022 is as follows :-

lerprises has been determined to (he exlent such parties have been Identified on the basis of information

(INR In Lakhs)
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Note 25 :

Note 26 :

Note 27 :

Note 28 :

Note 29 :

KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

Revenue from Operations

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

(INR In lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Sale of Products:

Finished Goods 12,518.88 7,009.18
Total 12,619.88 7,009.16
Products wise Sales
Chemicals 751.83 279.94
Fertilizers & Allied Products 10,068,37 5,086.15
Cattle Feeds 1,699.68 743.07

Total 12,519.88 7,009.16
Note:- The amount of revenues are exclusive of goods and services tax.
Other Income
(INR in lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Interest Income on
- Others 79.97 417
Profit/ (Loss) from sale of investment 18.25 3.02
Miscell us Income 0.96 0.58
Total 99.18 7.78
Materials Consumed
{INR in lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Raw Materials Consumed:
Inventories at the beginning of the year 1,029.49 1,035.49
Add: Purchases during the year 9,046.17 4,016.31
10,075.66 5,051.80
Less: Inventories at the end of the year 1,733.28 1,029.49
Total 8,342.38 4!022.31
Details of Raw Materials Consumed:
Rock Phosphate 4,336.51 2,380.87
Sulphur 1,771.36 785.66
Others 2,234.50 855.78
8,342.38 4!022.31
Change in inventories of finished goods and work-in-progress
{INR in lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Chan in Inv i Finish -in-
Inventories at the end of the year
Work in Process 96.45 179.02
Finished Goods 141.72 141.61
238.17 320.63
Inventories at the beginning of the year
Work in Process 179.02 484.56
Finished Goods 141.61 121.29
320.63 605.85
Tgl B2.46 285.2
Employee benefit expenses
(INR in lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March 31,2022 |  March 31,2021 |
Salaries, Wages and Bonus 514.21 441.45
Contributions to Provident and Other Funds 8.33 6.23
Gralulty Expenses 245 2.20
Staff Weifare Expenses 426 2.36
|°El ,25 422.24




¢ . KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Note 30 : Depreclation and Amortisation Expense

(INR in lakhs)
Particulars * For the Year ended For the Year ended
__March 31, 2022 | March 31,2029 |
Depreciation on tangible assels 271.08 246,12
Total i e 271,06 246.12
Note 31 : Finance Costs
(INR In lakhs)
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
_March31,2022 |  March31,2021 |
Interest Expense
- On Bank Loans 14.85 2011
- On Others 169 0.41
Other Borrowing Costs 0.76 0:53
Total 17.30 30.10

Note 32 : Other Expenses

(INR in lakhs
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year enm)-‘
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Manufacturing Expenses
Consumption of Stores and Spares 186.38 96.22
Packing Material 273.58 120.39
Power and Fuel 592.33 358.30
Water Charges 25.96 19.69
Repair and Maintenance 41.33 50.61
Insurance Premium 11.62 . 10.32
Other Administrative & Selling Expenses
Selling and Distribution Expenses 748.89 627.66
Travelling and Conveyance Expenses 4593 2518
Communication Expenses 0.88 0.85
Legal and Professional Expenses 6.67 6.88
Rent, Rates and Taxes 103.88 109.54
Printing and Stationery 0.10 0.09
Payments to Auditors:
- Audit Fees 0.85 0.85
- Tax Audit Fees ' - -
Miscellaneous Expenses 40.00 20.09
Allowance for credit losses (4.51) 8.33
Loss on Sale of Fixed Assets 5.61 1.26
Total 2,077.51 1,456.37
Note 33 : Earnings Per Equity Share
Particulars For the Year ended For the Year ended
March31,2022 |  March31,2021
1Net Profit attributable to Equity Shareholders (INR in Lakhs) 974.12 377.94
Weighted Average Number of Equity Shares (Nos. in Lakhs) 27.10 27.10
Diluted Number of Equity Shares (Nos. in Lakhs) 43.90 43.90
Basic Earnings Per Share (INR)(Not Annualised) 35.95 13.85
Diluted Earnings Per Share (INR)(Not Annualised) 22.19 8.61
|Face value per Share (INR)(Not Annualised) 10.00 10.00
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KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR EMDED MARCH 31, 2022

Note 34 : Financial Assels at Amortised Cost Method

The camying value of the followdng financial nrerte recognieea sl amartiaed cosl

[INR In Lakhs)
Particulars A at As ot
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-Current FiInancial Asseta
Security Deposilts 20
Current Financial Asspts e e
Trade recelvables £34 74 97521
Cash and Cash Equivainels 218 A4 251 88
Loans 069 050
Total a 775.08 1,248.73
Note The fair value of Ihe above financial assets are approximately equivalent to carrying valuas as recognised above,
Note 35 : Financlal Liabllities at Amortised Cost Method
The camying value of the following financial llabililies recognised at amortised cost.
{INR In Lakhs)
Particulars As at As at
March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-Current Financlal Liabilities
Bomowings 13.20 1.75
Current Financial Liabllities
Bomowings 3,084.77 1,563.54
Trade Payable 876.07 997.05
Other Financial Liabilities 10.40 15285
Total 3,984.44 2,714.89
Note: The fair value of the above financial liabilities are approximately equivalent to canrying values as recognised above.
Note 36 : Financial Assets at Fair Value Through Profit or Loss
The carrying value of the following financial assels recognised at fair value through profit or loss:
(INR in Lakhs)
As at Asat
Pagticulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Non-Current Financial Assets
Investments - 644.09
Current Financial Assets
Investments 2,742.01 -
Total 2,742.01 64409

Mote: The above investments are quoled instruments in active markels and the same is recognised at fair value. Fair value measurement is done considering the

Level -1 of Fair Value Hierarchy as per lhe Ind-AS 113.

Note 37 : Capital Management

For the purpose of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued equity share capital, securities premium and all ather reserves attributable to the

equity holders of the Company. The primary objective of the Company's capital management is to maximise the value of the share and

to reduce the cost of capital.

The Company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments n light of changes in economic conditions and the requirements of the financial covenants. Ta
maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Company can adjust the dividend payment to shareholders, Issue new shares, etc. The Company 2
gearing ratio, which is net debt divided by total equity. The Company includes within net debt, Interest bearing loans and borrowings, less cash and cash equivalents.

monitors capital using a

INR In Lakhs
As at As at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 341, 2021
A) Net Debt
Borrowings (Current and Non-Current) 3.1{::2: 1;;:;
Cash and cash equivalents _
s Net Debt (A) 2,889.52 1,485.97
B) Equity
i ! 2M.00 271.00
ity share tal
E{:)'Ihsl'ml yEquﬂy - 3,964.56 2992 01
TotalEquity(®) | 420586] 326301
Gearing Ratio (Net Debt / Equity) l.e. (A / B) 68.22% 44.93%

Note 38 : Contingent Liabilities not Provided for:

Bank guaraniee given by the banks on behalf of the Company amounting lo Re.Nil (March 31, 2021 Rs. Nil) to suppliers ol goods.




KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Note 39 : Segment Information:

Considening the n:_umm of business and Integrated manufactudng process of tha Company, tha Company conaiders ity producta undar ona segment only |.e,
Chemicals & Fertilisers. Accordingly, Seament Reporting In accordance with Accounting Standard - 17 “Sagment Reporling” (asuad by tha Institula of Charterad
Accountants of India and adopted by Companies (Accounting Standard) Hules, 2000 1a not Applicabila to the Company

Note 40 : Employee Benefits;

The Company has classified the various benefits provided to employess as under:

I. Defined Contribution Plans
8. Emplovers' Contribution to Provident Fund and Employea's Pension Schema

During the year, tha Company has incumed and recognised the following amounts in tha Statement of Profit and Loss:

Year ended Year ended
March 31, 2022 March M, 2021
(INR In lakhs) (INR In lakhs)
Employers' Contribution to Provident Fund and Employea’s Pension Scheme 8.33 623
Total Expenses recognised in the Statement of Profit and Loss (Refer Nole 29) 8.33 5.23
N. Defined Benefit Plan
Gratuity Fund
a. Major Assumptions (% p.a.) (% p.a)
Discount Rate 7.47% 7.06%
Salary Escalation Rate @ 5.00% 5.000%
@ The estimates for future salary increases considered takes inlo account the
inflation, seniority, promotion and other relevant factors.
Expected Rate of Retum N.A NA
Employes Tumover 5.00% 5.00%
b. Change in Present Value of Obligation (INR In lakhs) (INR in lakhs)
Present Value of Obligation as at the beginning of the year 553 418
Current Service Cost 1.99 1.88
Interest Cost 0.48 034
Benefit paid - (0.04)
Remeasurements - Actuarial (Gain)/ Loss on Otligations 2.16 (0.79)
Present Value of Obiligation as at the end of the year 10.14 5.53
¢. Change In Fair value of Plan Assets (INR In lakhs) (INR in lakhs)
Fair value of Plan Assets, Beginning of Period - -
Expected Returm on Plan Assets - -
Acluarial Gains/(Losses) - -
Benefit Paid - =
Fair value of Plan Assets at the end of the year N =
d. Reconciliation of Present Value of Defined Benefit Obligation (INR in lakhs) (INR In lakhs)
and the Fair Value of Assets
Present Value of Obligation 10.14 5.53
Fair Value of Plan Assets 5 -
Funded Status (10.14) (5.53)
Present Value of Unfunded Obligation 10.14 553
Unfunded Net Liability recognised in the Balance Sheet disclosed under Long Term 10.14 553

Provisions and Short Term Provisions

e. Expenses Recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss

Curmrent Service Cost 1.99
Interest Cosl 0.46 0.34
Expected Relum on Plan Assets “ P
Acluarial Losses Recognised in the year 218 (0.79)
Tolal expenses recognised In the Statement of Profit and Loss 4.61 1.41
f. Expense Recognised In the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income (INR In lakhs) (INR in lakhs)

Remeasurements of the net defined benefit llability

cluarial (gains) f losses obligation 2.16 (0.79)
; e N 2,18 (0.79)

tuarial BEE! ligatio
Due 1o Demographic Assumption*
Due lo Financial Assumption (0.29) (0.09)
Due to Experience 245 (o.70)
Total Actuarial (Gain)/Loss 2.16 {0.79)
*This figure does not reflect interrelationship between demographic assumption and financlal assumption when a limit Is applied on the banefil, the effect
will be shown as an experience
f. Amounts Ised in the Bal Sheet (INR In lakhs) {INR In lakhs)
Present Value of Obligation as &l year end (10.14) (5.53)
ir Value of Plan Assels as at year end - 2

iondss racopieed 10.14 5.53

Unfunded Nel Liability recognised In the Balance Sheet disclosed under Long Term Provisions and

Ehonl Term Provisions

(INR In lakhs)

(INR In lakhs)
1.86




KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

I, Other Employee Benefit
The liability for leave entitlement as al March 31, 2022 Is INR 1.89 Lakhs(March 31, 2021: INR 1,85 lakhs),

IV. Sensitivity Analysis

The below sensllivity analyses are based on a change in an assumplion while holding all other assumplions constant. In praclica, this is uniikely to occur
and ci'lar_!ges in some of the assumplions may be comelated. When calculaling the sensiivily of the defined benefit obligation to significant acluarial
assumptions the same method (present value of the defined benefit obligation calculated with the projected unit credit method at the end of tha reporting

period) has been applied as when calculating the defined benefit liabllity racognised In (he balance shael. The methods and types of assumplions used in

preparing the sensitivity analysis did not change compared (o {he prior perlod.

a. Gratuity
A quantitative sensitivity analysis for significant assumption as at March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as shown below:
Particulars Change In DI t I / Change In Salary Increase/ (Decrease)
Rate (Decrease) in Escalation Rate In Present Value of
Present Value of Obligations
Obllaations
{INR In lakhs) {IMR In lakhs)
March 31, 2022 +1% (0.63) +1% 072
1% 073 - 1% (087)
March 31, 2021 +1% (0.27) +1% 0.31
-1% 0.2¢ -1% (0.30)
V. Expected Cash Flows for the next 10 years
The following payments are projected benefils payable in future years from the date of reporting from the fund:
(INR in Lakhs|
% For the Year Ended | For the Year Ended
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Within the next 12 months (next annual reporting period) 141 0.03
Following year 2-5 480 1.81
Sum of years £-10 4.58 2.90
Total expected pay ts 10.80 4.74
V1. Risk Exposure

Through its defined benefit plans, the Company Is exposed to a number of risks, the most significant of which are detailed:

Interest risk A decrease in the market yields in the govemment bond will increase the plan Tiability.

Longevity risk The present value of defined benefit plan liability s calculated using a discount rate which Is determined by reference 1o
the best estimate of the mortality of plan participants both during and after employment. An increase in the life
expectancy of the plan participants will increase the plan's liability.

Salary risk The present value of defined benefit plan liability is calculated using a discount rate which is det_ennhad w_mferenca to
the future salaries of plan participants. As such, an Increase In the salary of the plan participants will increase the

lan's liability.
Note 41 : Related Party Disclosure
A P, 8
2. Detalle of Relatec Pars Names of Related Parties
M/s Shres Pushkar Chemicals and fertilisers Ltd.
Notes: . . ]
1) The list of related parties above has been limited to entities with which transactions have taken place during the year.

2) Related party ransactions have peen disciosed ill the tima the relationship existed.

b. Details of Related Party transactions during the year ended March 31, 2022

Amount In Lakhs

For the Year Ended | Forthe Year Ended
P March 34, 2022 March 34, 2021
Compulsory Convertible [ ture _ )
M/s Shree Pushkar Chemicals and fertilisers L1d.
¢. Closing Balances of the Related Partles amautin LiENS
Balances as at Balances as at
Particulars March 31, 2022 March 31, 2021
Mis Shree Pushkar Chemicals and fertillsers Lid. - :

FI?NK
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Note 42 : CIF Value of Imports

KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL

Particulars

M it l

. STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 34, 2022

n Lakhs
For tha Year anded
March 31, 2021

For tha Yaar andad
Mareh 3, 2022

CIF value of Imports of Raw Matar

4,007 02 2,545 60

Note 43 : Impact of COVID.18

Due to outbreak of COVID-10 globally and In India, the Company's mana
on account of COVID-18, and believes thal the Impact
Company's ability to continue as a aoing eoncem and

in the lang term

Note 44: Ratios

The ratios for the year ended March 31, 2022 and March 31, 2021 are as follows:-

pement has made inillal assasament of likely advaraa impact on business and financial raks
I8 likely 10 ba shoit term In nature Tha managamant dons not ses any madium o Iong tarm riaks in lhe
meeting ils habililies ns and whon they fall dua, and eompk
Company's management has evalualed the prospects of the Company's products and lls demand in this parlod an
usual and is in & position ta cater all the needs of the customers. So, Ihe com

ance with the debl covenanta, as applicatle The
| believes that these products whi see damand as

pany may not have any materlal impact on Ihe ovarall financial stranglh of the Company

service = Net Profit
afler Taxes +
Depraciation and
Amortisation
Expense + Finance
costs (excluding
interest on lease

Ratio
Numerator Danominator As at As at
31, 20 March 31, 2021

Current Ratio {in times) Tolal current assets |Tolal current liablities 1.27 0.93
Note: Increase in investments during the year has led lo increase in current ralio,
Debt equity ratio (in times) Tolal Debt includes | Total Equity 073 0.53

non current and

cument borrowings

and lease liabilties
Note: Increase in borrowings during the year has led to increase in debt equity ratio.
Debt service coverage ratio (in times) Eamings of Debt Debt Service = Finance 9.58 1.83

Costs (excluding cost
pertaining to lease

bormowings

liabilities) + Repayment of

Retum on Equity ratio (in %)

Note: During the year, the profit of the company has increased by 158% , due to which return on equity ratio has increased.

[Inventory Tumover Ratio {in times) |Cost of Goods Sold _[Average Inventory 4.75 | 271
Note: Decrease in the cost and considerable demand for the products has led to increase in the Iny ver ratio
Trade Receivables Tumover ratio (in imes) |Revenue from Average Trade 16.58 584
fions Receivables

Trade Receivables Tumover Ratio

Note; During the year, trade receivables has decrease by 46% but the revenue has increased by 79% which has contributed to the fise in

Trade Payables Tumover ratio (in times) Purchases of raw Average Account 10.15 394

malerials, stores &  |Payables
a3

Note: In the current financial year there is a significant increase in purchases which has increased the Trade Payables ratio.

Net Capital Tumover ratio (in times) |Revenue from |Average working capital 8.21 29.41
operations (l.e. total current asset-

Jtotal current liabiiities)

Note: Due o increase in working capital, the ratio has decreased in the current financial year,

INeI Profit ratio (in %) Ipmm for the year |Reveme from operations 7.78% 5.39%

Note: Increase in profil in the current has increased the said ratio.

Retum on Capital Employed (in %) EBITDA = Net Profit |Average Capital 21.62% 16.08%
after Taxes + employed (Total
Depreciation and equity+Total Debt)
Amortisation
Expense + Finance
costs {excluding
Interest on lease
liabilitie s)

Note: During the year, the earnings of the has increased by B9% , dus lo 1he ratio has s8d. = T

Retum on Invesiment {in %) EBITDA = Net Profit |Networth 37.48 3
after Taxes +
Depreciation and
Amorlisalion
Expense + Finance
costs (excluding
Interest on lease
|liabilties)

[tiote: During the year, the earnings of the company has increased by 80% , due to which the ratio has | creased.




KISAN PHOSPHATES PRIVATE LIMITED

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED MARCH 31, 2022

Note 45 : Previous Years' Figures:
Standards) Rules, 2015 (Ind-AS) prescribed under Section 133

h the Companies (Indian Accounling
licable. The pravious period’s figures have been regrouped of

The financial statements have been prepared in accordance wil
extent appl

of the Companies Act, 2013 and other recognised accounting practices and polices to the
rearranged wherever necessary.

The accompanying notes are an Integral part of these financlal stalements

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
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